ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 11, 2003
3:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Ben Stevens

Senator Kim El ton

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns
Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 142
"An Act designating the Departnment of Natural Resources as |ead
agency for resource developnent projects; nmaking conformng
anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 142( RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 50
"An Act anending the manner of determning the royalty received
by the state on gas production as it relates to the manufacture
of certain val ue-added products.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 142 - See Resources m nutes dated 4/9/03.

SB 50 — See Resources m nutes dated 3/26/03.

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Janet Burl eson- Baxt er

Department of Natural Resources

400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Answer ed guesti ons about permtting

procedures related to SB 142 and stated support for the concept
of a | ead agency

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2003



Ms. Mary Siroky

Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation

410 W | oughby

Juneau, AK 99801-1795

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 142

M. Dick LeFebvre

Acting Deputy Comm ssi oner

Departnent of Natural Resources

400 W I I oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions about SB 142

Ms. Mary Jackson

Staff to Senat or WAagoner

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes nmade in Version | of
SB 50

M. Mark Myers

Director, Division of Ol and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

550 W7th Ave.

Anchorage, AK 99501- 3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: The Adm nistration has taken no position on
SB 50 but he supports Senator Wagoner's proposed anmendnent

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-27, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 3:33 p.m Senators Stevens, Wagoner, Elton,
Dyson and Chair QOgan were present. Chair Ogan announced the
commttee would take up SB 142 first.

SB 142- DNR LEAD RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT PRQJECTS

CHAIR OGAN said that nost of the questions he raised about SB
142 at the April 9 hearing have been answered. At that hearing,
Senator Lincoln suggested putting a sunset date in the
| egi sl ation. He supports that suggestion and would |like to see
the program reviewed by the legislature in the second year of

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 11, 2003



the next admnistration. He asked M. Burleson-Baxter if she
would i ke to testify.

M5. JANET BURLESON-BAXTER, Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR), told nenbers that she, Dick Lefebvre, Bob Loeffler and
Cam Leonard were avail able to answer questions.

SENATOR ELTON thanked the representatives from DNR and DEC for
bringing himup to speed on this legislation, as he was absent
fromthe last hearing. He then said he had several questions to
ask on behalf of Senator Lincoln, who was excused. The first
question was about the appeal process under the new system He
noted Senator Lincoln was concerned that the new permtting
office would be in charge of issuing permts while the
i ndi vi dual agenci es woul d hear the appeals.

M5. BURLESON- BAXTER said none of the agencies would |ose their
authority over appeals of their respective permts. An appeal
could be brought to the DNR project office but if the issue
surrounded an individual permt, the adjudicatory process would
be dealt wth through the existing appeal procedure of the
particul ar agency.

M5. MARY SI ROKY, Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC),
affirmed Ms. Burl eson-Baxter's expl anati on.

SENATOR ELTON then asked, on behalf of Senator Lincoln, if the
cost of the new office would be m ninmal because the cost will be
transferred to the permttee. He questioned whether the cost
will be difficult to estimate until DNR knows how many major
permt applications it will have.

V5. BURLESON- BAXTER nodded affirmatively.

CHAI R OGAN pointed out the fiscal notes are zero but the funds
for this legislation are included in the Governor's operating
budget request. He commented that approach keeps the nunber of
commttee referrals down but questioned what will happen if no
new positions are funded in the budget. He said putting the
actual cost of the positions on the fiscal note would be
cl earer.

MR. DI CK LEFEBVRE, Acting Deputy Comm ssioner, DNR, said DNR has
a nunber of large projects in the queue already. DNR antici pates

that the reinbursable services l|lined up for this year wll
continue into next year. The conponent in the budget recognizes
sonme of those funds. Wether SB 142 passes or not, DNR will need

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 11, 2003



authorization to receive and expend those funds, which is why
DNR used the budget as the main vehicle to carry the funding
request.

CHAI R OGAN asked if DNR could be the |ead agency if the funding
request in the operating budget is not net.

MR. LEFEBVRE said it coul d.

SENATOR ELTON commented that when the legislature directs
departnments to make an unallocated budget reduction, the

| egi sl ature does not know where that reduction will take place
He agreed the bill should have a fiscal note that reflects the
source of the funds and how those funds will be spent.

SENATOR STEVENS said his interpretation of the section being
repeal ed on page 3, AS 46.35.070, is that a state agency still
has the responsibility to issue the permt but the coordinator
i s being changed, which is the reason for the zero fiscal note.

MR LEFEBVRE said that is correct.

SENATOR ELTON of fered a conceptual anendnent to include a sunset
date that takes effect two years into the next adm nistration.

SENATOR STEVENS objected for the purpose of discussion. He then
asked the departnent to comrent on the sunset provision and how
the three-phase team concept would be inplemented with a sunset
provi sion. He also asked what program the state would revert to
if the sunset took place, and whether it would be the programin
exi sting Section 4.

CHAI R OGAN pointed out that Section 4 is not being used at this
tinme.

SENATOR STEVENS asked DNR staff to coment on the sunset
concept .

V5. BURLESON- BAXTER said DNR |ikes the concept of the bill. She
pointed out the concept of the |ead agency began during the
Hi ckel Admnistration and was continued through the Know es
Adm nistration to this one. She said if a sunset provision is
i ncl uded, she believes DNR would try to carry on wth the team
concept as best as it could because it has been successful for
DNR i n the past.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2003



SENATOR STEVENS pointed out that DNR woul d have no authority to
continue as the lead agency if a sunset took place.

IVS. BURLESON- BAXTER said DNR would not have prescriptive
statutory authority but it mght engage in a nenorandum of
under st andi ng.

SENATOR ELTON said his wunderstanding is that a sunset would
require the state agencies to revert to the ad hoc process used
now. He said the argunent for a sunset review is that it would
set in notion a process to answer sone of the questions, i.e.
is the new office charging the permttees an appropriate anount.
A sunset review would give the legislature the opportunity to
review the definition of a large natural resource project and
tweak or elimnate aspects of the program that are problematic.
A sunset also remnds the departnent that the program will be
revi ewed, which induces good behavi or.

MR. LEFEBVRE told nenbers one benefit of having clear statutory
authority is that the federal agenci es, when preparing
environmental inpact statenents (EI'S), would know who they have
to deal with. Right now, they nust deal wth state agencies
individually unless state agencies agree anongst thenselves
prior to the start of a project.

SENATOR STEVENS said in his opinion, sonme of the annual sunset
revi ews undert aken by t he | egi sl ature are routine
reaut hori zations. The legislature has the authority to nake
changes to a program at any tinme, if need be. He said while a
sunset review forces the legislature to review a program there
is a dividing line between a reauthorization and a review and
evaluation. He said DNR s annual report to the legislature
should keep legislators infornmed about how DNR s authority as
| ead agency is being utilized.

SENATOR WAGONER said he planned to support the anendnent but
woul d prefer an annual review because sunset reviews are very
time consuming. He believes this legislation is one of the nost
i nportant before the legislature this year

SENATOR STEVENS said he believes in putting the onus on DNR to
describe how this concept is working by requiring it to present
an annual report to the |egislature.

MR. LEFEBVRE pointed out that one of the benefits of the |ead

agency concept is that it is voluntary on the part of the permt
applicant. If the applicant is not satisfied with the project

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2003



process, the legislature wll know about it well in advance of
the next legislative session.

SENATOR DYSON said inherent in the m ssions and neasures process
is an annual review by the Legislative Finance commttees. He
said he believes nobst sunset review tine |engths should be
doubl ed because they are very tinme consum ng. However, because
this is a new concept, he feels a sunset provision is valid so
that the legislature nakes sure an annual review takes place
every year.

SENATOR ELTON said he prefers the formalized process of a
[ sunset] review

CHAI R OGAN pointed out the next DNR comm ssioner could be very
anti-devel opnent and a | ot of power has been consolidated within
that position. He advised that it mght be prudent to take a
formal | ook at this change in a few years as a check and bal ance
neasur e.

SENATOR WAGONER said his concern with a sunset review is that
the legislature has the right to review this piece of
| egislation any tinme it deens it necessary but he feels the
| egi sl ature should watch this program change closely because it
is new. He expressed concern that 2008 is a long tinme from now
so he proposed a sunset reviewin tw years.

SENATOR ELTON accepted Senator \Wagoner's proposal as an
amendnent to his anmendnent.

SENATOR DYSON obj ect ed.

The notion to adopt the amendnent to the amendnent, to change
the date of the sunset review from 2008 to two years, carried
Wi th Senators Stevens, Wagoner and Elton in favor, and Senators
Dyson and Ogan opposed.

M5. SIROKY told menmbers that from the agencies' perspective, a
longer tinme frame for a sunset review would be better. She
expressed concern that projects take a significant anmount of
time fromstart to finish so a two-year w ndow mi ght not be |ong
enough to see whether the process is working. She suggested a
four or six year w ndow.

CHAIR OGAN noved to anmend the anendnent to require a sunset
review in four years.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2003



There being no objection, the notion carri ed.

The commttee then voted on the anended anendnent, that being
whether to include a sunset provision [to take effect in four
years]. The notion carried with Senators Dyson, Elton, and Ogan
in favor, and Senators Wagoner and Stevens opposed.

There being no further testinmony, SENATOR WAGONER noved SB 142
as anmended from committee wth individual recommendations and
its acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, the
notion carri ed.

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.

SB 50- ROYALTY GAS CONTRACTS

CHAI R OGAN informed nenbers that a proposed committee substitute
had been prepared, Version |, which is essentially the sane as
t he House Finance Conmittee substitute to HB 57.

SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt Version | as the working docunent
of the commttee.

CHAIR OGAN objected for the purpose of discussion. He then
informed participants that he did not intend to nove the
|l egislation from conmttee today because Version | makes
substantive changes to the last version of the bill. In
addi ti on, an anendnment has been proposed.

M5. MARY JACKSON, staff to Senator Wagoner, sponsor of SB 50,
verified that Version | is the conpanion |egislation to CSHB
57(FIN), which is in the House Rules Conmttee. She explained
the differences in Version | as follows:

* On page 2, the nerged utility and manufacturing |anguage
was separated into two subsections, (1)(A) and (1)(B). New
| anguage was added to line 23 that reads, "for a contract
entered into for a circunstance described in (1)(A) of this
subsection.” Section (1)(A) is specific to the utilities
and is existing language in statute. Section 1(B) is new
and contains the requirenments for manuf acturers  of
agricultural chemcals. She told nenbers that separating
the requirements of wutilities and manufacturers into two
sections reads nore clearly.

* On page 3, line 9, the word "and" was changed to "or"; the
net result being that any one of the exceptions would cone

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2003



into play, rather than all of them That change was
reconmended by the Adm nistration.

M5. JACKSON said Chair Qgan previously asked whether the
| egi slation contains a mechanism to allow the conm ssioner to
negotiate a contract so that the State of Al aska would share in
the profit as well as the risk. She said such a provision would
lead to a better fiscal note and told nenbers the sponsor has
provided a proposed anendnent on that subject for the
commttee's consideration.

SENATOR STEVENS referred to Section 2(B)(ii) on lines 5, 6 and 7
of page 3 and asked why it contains the words "tangible benefits
to the state"” and differs from Section (2)(A)(ii) on page 2.

M5. JACKSON explained that Section (2)(A) applies to the
utilities. Section (2)(B) is new [and applies to val ue-added
manuf act urers]. Those words were added so that if the
commi ssioner determned that a royalty reduction would lead to
certain benefits related to enploynent opportunities or sone
ot her unknown tangible benefit, the commssioner could go
forward with a contract.

SENATOR STEVENS said he thought tangible benefits were included
in respect to the manufacturer, not just the utility.

MS. JACKSON said that is correct.

SENATOR STEVENS said the two sections seem to be contradictory
in ternms of tangible benefits.

M5. JACKSON referred Senator Stevens to subsection (A) on page
2, regarding the wutilities contracts. She pointed out the
| anguage that begins on line 26 is the sane as the |anguage on
page 3, line 5, however it is specific to the manufacturer of
agricultural chem cals.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if that language is nore aligned wth
subsection (A) than it was in the |ast version.

M5. JACKSON said it is essentially the same; it has just been
separated into two sections.

SENATOR STEVENS said he thought the comm ssioner could consider

royalty reductions by offsetting other tangible benefits in the
| ast version. Now, Version | says the royalty reduction receipts

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2003



woul d not be bal anced, which is contradictory. He said the word
"not" should not be included.

TAPE 03-27, SIDE B

SENATOR ELTON clarified that the Ilist of itenms on page 3
contains the reasons the comm ssioner could deny a contract
based on a witten finding, one being that the royalty reduction
woul d not be balanced by enploynent opportunities or any other
tangi ble benefit to the state. He asked why this |anguage is
nore specific for the mnufacturers, as it further defines
benefits as enpl oynent opportunities or other tangi ble benefits.

CHAI R OGAN comrented that if the state lets a utility lock into
a certain price and the state |oses sone noney, Alaskan

consuners will benefi t W th cheaper electricity. Wth
manuf acturers, the public benefit is not as tangible. In the
original bill, the mnufacturers asked to be treated like a

utility. However, Agrium and its enployees m ght have benefitted
but at an expense to the state.

M5. JACKSON said that is a fair analysis. She pointed out that
| anguage on page 2, line 27, of Version | includes a bar that
the utilities nust reach. The |anguage on page 3 includes the
bar the manufacturers nmust neet.

SENATOR ELTON commented that in the case of the manufacturer,
the consuners who benefit could be overseas and not Al askan
CONSUNers.

SENATOR WAGONER remarked that one benefit is jobs in Kenai.

Ri ght now, Agriumis operating at 75 percent capacity and may be
| osing noney everyday it operates. If this bill helps Agrium
operate at 100 percent capacity, it will maintain and increase
jobs. He noted if one of Kenai's petrochemcal plants shuts
down, the chances of it ever reopening is very |low. He pointed
out that Agrium is a big part of the econony on the Kenai

Peni nsul a.

CHAI R OGAN expressed concern that this legislation singles out
one type of industry and sets a precedent for other industries,
such as the LNG plant at Pt. Mckenzie that ships LNG to
Fai r banks.

MR MARK MYERS, Director of the Division of Ol and Gas, DNR

told nenbers that in regard to the previous discussion about
Sections (2)(A and (2)(B), Senator Elton was correct when he

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2003



pointed out that the royalty reduction is granted unless one of
those four conditions exists, in which case the conm ssioner can
deny it.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the conm ssioner will have to prove
that the royalty reduction would not be bal anced and not have a
positive inpact on the econony.

SENATOR ELTON said he did not understand M. Mers' explanation
because if the conm ssioner can deny the royalty reduction based
on the first factor listed, the comm ssioner would not consider
the second factor, that the royalty reduction would not be
bal anced by enpl oynent opportunities or other tangi ble benefits.

MR MYERS said that is correct as the four variables are
i ndependent. The comm ssioner can deny the reduction if any one
of the four variables exists.

CHAIR OGAN asked M. Mers if he anticipates that this
| egislation will set a precedent for other industries.

MR. MYERS said the petrochem cal industry could argue, as Agrium
has, that it adds a lot of value to the state based on gas-to-
|l iquids (GTL) projects, for exanple.

CHAIR OGAN asked if, under the Stranded Gas Act, the
commi ssioner of revenue was given the ability to negotiate
royalty paynents for the petrochem cal and GIL industries.

MR. MYERS answered the comm ssioner cannot change the rate but
val uation nethodol ogies <can be negotiated. The producers
proposed simlar treatnent to the previous admnistration in
terms of their gas | eases.

CHAIR OGAN felt justification could be nade that this incentive
shoul d be given to other industries.

MR. MYERS agreed and said DNR understands Agrium s concern that
it needs a good supply of gas to get up to 100 percent capacity.

CHAI R OGAN asked if nore gas is available but not at the price
Agrium needs to be profitable.

MR. MYERS said supply and denmand is balanced at this tinme but,
at current rates of consunption wthout additional exploration
success, Cook Inlet will begin to squeeze out those who are
willing to pay less for the gas. Typically, the utility market

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2003



pays a higher value, followed by LNG followed by the
agricultural manufacturer. That will put Agriumin a tight spot
when deliverability is |less. He noted that a good deal of
exploration is going on in Cook Inlet at this tine.

SENATOR STEVENS expressed concern about the differences between
Section (2)(A) and Section (2)(B) [the four factors the
conmmi ssi oner can use to deny a reduction], and pointed out that
Section (2)(A) contains the word "and" while Section (2)(B)
contains the word "or". Therefore, all variables nust exist in
Section (2)(A) while only one variable nust exist in Section
(2)(B) for the comm ssioner to deny a royalty reduction.

MR. MYERS indicated the original bill contained the word "and"
and he does not know why this version was changed to "or". He
said Version | in its current formsets a different standard for
agricultural manufacturers than it does for the utilities. A
four conditions nust exist for the commssioner to deny an
application froma utility.

SENATOR STEVENS said he believes the statenent on page 2, |ines
21-22, should be changed because he reads it to nean that (A
and (B) fall under that statenent.

MS. JACKSON said the issue is that the standards for the new
manuf act ur er are nore restrictive. For a utility, t he
conmm ssioner nust enter into a contract wunless all f our
conditions are net. For a manufacturer, the conmm ssioner shall
enter into a contract unless any one condition is net. She
repeated the provision is nore restrictive for the nmanufacturer
than it is for the utility.

SENATOR STEVENS said he understands the intent but he does not
read those sections that way because both (A) and (B) are
subsections of Section (1)(aa)(2).

SENATOR ELTON said the bill makes it easier for the conm ssioner
to deny a contract with a manufacturer than with a utility.

MR. MYERS told commttee nenbers the Adm nistration has taken no
position on the bill but said he supports the proposed
anendnent .

CHAIR OGAN renoved his objection to adopting the work draft,

therefore the notion to adopt Version | as the working docunent
before the commttee carri ed.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 11, 2003



SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which reads as
fol | ows:

Page 3, after line 11, insert "(C in granting an
application under this section, the comm ssioner nay
use or accept an anmount in excess of the price for the
gas established in the contract but less than woul d
otherwise be due under the lease when it is in the
best interest of the state.”

CHAIR OGAN objected for the purpose of discussion. He told
menbers he intended to adjourn the neeting w thout adopting the
anendnent to give nmenbers a few days to consider it.

CHAIR OGAN said Amendnent 1 is a profit sharing anmendnent that
will allowthe state to share in any upside.

SENATOR WAGONER told nenmbers Anendnent 1 was witten in
consultation with Division of Gl and Gas staff, who said it is
necessary to allow the comm ssioner to negotiate profit sharing.

SENATOR ELTON pointed out that Amendnment 1 will cause a change
in the fiscal note.

SENATOR WAGONER agreed Anendnment 1 will make the fiscal note
much nore powerful.

CHAIR OGAN told nenbers the commttee would take up SB 50 and
the proposed anendnent on Mnday and adjourned the neeting at
4:45 p. m

#

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 11, 2003



